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NOTICE OF MEETING
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 87TH ANNUAL GENERAL 
MEETING OF MEMBERS OF THE REMUERA GOLF CLUB INC 
WILL BE CONDUCTED ELECTRONCIALLY VIA MOBILE AND WEB 
APPLICATION (VIRTUAL AGM PLATFORM) ON MONDAY 13TH  
OF DECEMBER, 2021 AT 7PM.

AGENDA ITEMS
1. Club Captain’s | Chairman of the Board of Management Address

2. General Managers Address

3. Formal Business Items

 a.    Approval of Minutes of the 2020 Annual General Meeting
 b.    Matters arising from the Minutes of the 2020 Annual General Meeting
 c.    Adoption of the Annual Report and Financial Statements
 d.    Election of the Officers
 e.    Appointment of the Auditor

The Board of Management moves that the RSM Hayes Audit be appointed as Auditor  
for the 2021/2022 Financial Year.

4. General Business

Ian Braddock
Club Captain
Chairman – Board of Management 
26th November 2021

Member Categories entitled to vote:

Life, Honorary, Full Playing, 18 Hole, Weekday, 9 Hole, Flexi, Veteran and Intermediate 
and Covid-19 Pause.

PATRON
John Rainger

LIFE MEMBERS
Margaret Moffatt, John Rainger

PRESIDENT
Ken Taylor

CLUB CAPTAIN
Ian Braddock

MEN’S GOLF CAPTAIN
James Kim

WOMEN’S GOLF CAPTAIN
Wendy Williams

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
Ian Braddock (Chair), Geoff Burns,  
Pauline Harrison, James Kim, Grant Marshall, 
Andrew Millard, Ken Taylor, Wendy Williams

GENERAL MANAGER
Chris Davies

BANKERS
ANZ Bank Ltd

AUDITOR
RSM Hayes Audit

INCORPORATION DATE 
 8th February 1935

2021
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Despite all of this, we have taken some significant 
steps forward in the club and its operations.  Much 
of which has probably gone unnoticed, but we 
have been building our team and its capability that 
will allow us to deliver our vision, provide a higher 
level of service and manage the new driving range 
facility.  Over the next few pages we have outlined 
our 2021 outcomes and actions planned for the 
next two years.  

This time last year, we had just completed our 
re-structure and much of 2021 has been spent 
recruiting and building our team and for some, 
settling into new roles.  Implementing change 
is never easy and alongside increased levels 
of activity across the club, coupled with Covid 
protocols the team has done an outstanding job 
this year.

Alongside this has been the driving range 
development and delivery of this project. Covid 
tried its very best to disrupt timelines with supply 
chain challenges, but we managed to overcome 
these and opened on 17th May.

The project itself was the culmination of many 
years of planning and development and it is an 
outstanding result, a facility the envy of many. 
It is a world-class addition to the club and the 
benefits will be felt for many years through many 
forms, not least generating the pipeline of future 
members and providing an additional sustainable 
revenue source.

This has started and we are already seeing 
golfers using the range and seeking to become 
members of the club. Golf through the pandemic 
has received a boost in interest, but it is incumbent 
upon clubs such as ours to take advantage. 

On behalf of the club, I would like to thank 
Precision Construction and all the sub-
contractors for the professionalism and quality of 
the work in this project. The result is outstanding 
and is something the club can be very proud 
of. Working alongside Precision and our sub-
contractors we had a building working group of 
Andrew Millard, Peter Healey and John Durkin, 
all club members and I would like to record our 
thanks to them for their time, skills and dedication 
to deliver this project.

As I touched on earlier the level of operating 
activity certainly stepped this year up to different 
levels than we have seen in previous years. As 
the borders remained closed, members chose to 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT
MUCH HAS BEEN SAID OR WRITTEN ABOUT THE COVID INTERRUPTIONS.   
AS WE APPROACH CHRISTMAS AND THE END OF THIS CALENDAR YEAR,  
WE HAVE A GLIMMER THAT THERE MAY BE SOME FREEDOMS APPROACHING.

engage more with our club. As a result, we have 
adapted and responded accordingly, we have 
reduced visitor golf access and corporate days to 
provide more availability and continue to manage 
accordingly to provide equitable access.

As we know all of this was disrupted when on 17th 

August, we entered lockdown and have remained 
there ever since. There is no doubt this time 
around it has felt very different, and the prolonged 
period is being felt by everyone. Under level 3 we 
deliberately chose to operate first and foremost 
under a high threshold of safety protocols and 
secondly to offer maximum opportunity for 
members to play 9 holes or access the range.  
This was well-received with a high level of 
engagement across the course and range.

Approaching 2022, we are anticipating continued 
high levels of activity across the club and we 
are preparing for this. We have already felt the 
disruption to the supply chains and have put in 
place plans to minimise their potential impact.  
On the subsequent pages you will also see items 
that we want to achieve over the next two years.

I would like to thank the board, our committees 
and all our volunteers that give up their time for 
the club and support our team. Finally, I would 
like to thank the team for its efforts this year. We 
have an outstanding team of dedicated and skilled 
people that strive every day to improve our club.  
I know they are very excited to get back to normal 
operations and to welcome everyone back to  
the club.

 

Chris Davies
General Manager

CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 
DESPITE COVID RELATED DISRUPTIONS SIGNIFICANT PROGRESS WAS MADE DURING THE YEAR INCLUDING THE OPENING 
OF THE NEW DRIVING RANGE AND THE CLUB IS IN A STRONG POSITION GOING FORWARD.

For the second year running member and club 
activity was disrupted by Covid. During the past 12 
months we had almost 2 months at Covid Levels 2, 3 
&  4, the majority at Levels 3 & 4. These lockdowns 
have impacted us in several ways. They prevented 
members enjoying both the recreational and social 
aspects of the club to the full, club competitions, 
our major driving range extension project, staff 
members, club finances mainly through disruption 
to Winstones, driving ranges and retail.

Additionally, the Covid uncertainty impacted our 
clear path, remapping our already interrupted 
5 year strategy to complete the course, related 
infrastructure and other project  work. Given 
these challenges we have made the decision to 
delay implementing any major course work and 
to undertake only low-level work over the next 
18-24 months to allow members to play golf with 
minimal disruption.

Thank you to all members for your patience and 
understanding during what has been an unsettling 
and frustrating year, playing  golf and the enjoyment 
of being with golfing friends.

During the year the board with input from club 
committees further refined our club vision and 
core pillars. Central to this is the club as our Third 
Place - providing a golfing and social environment 
that is safe, inclusive, welcoming and relaxed with 
a range of activities and opportunities for members 
and visitors. Flowing from this the board and its 
working groups are in the process of refreshing 
and updating the long-term strategy, focusing 
on key areas of improving playability, updating 
the course masterplan and improving off-course 
experiences, including Winstones and the driving 
ranges. Also, we want to ensure our governance 
and management policies and practices structures 
are fit for purpose and allow us to deliver on the club 
vision and objectives.

Significant work has gone on during the year 
on membership and related activities. We have 
reshaped some of our membership categories 
including relative rights with changes made after 
considerable thought and  analysis from DotGolf. 

During the past year the trend of broadly the same 
numbers of members playing more golf, largely 
due to travel restrictions, has resulted in ongoing 
pressure on course access. Our 1,471 playing 
members played 53,358 rounds of golf during the 
year. However, there is a small number of members  
playing a disproportionately high number of rounds. 
As a result, we have recently implemented the “Fair 

Play” policy restricting some bookings as we need 
to be fair to all members. This will be reviewed on an 
ongoing basis and may be extended depending on 
the results.

Because of pressure with access to the course our 
current policy of holding membership numbers 
broadly constant has continued. We are reluctant 
to reduce overall numbers for a range of reasons 
including uncertainty around the well documented 
long-term decline in golf despite a more recent 
Covid upturn. No new members were admitted 
for the six months to year end. At year end we had 
a waiting list of over 120 applicants and with the 
usual resignations we have only been able to accept 
some applications. Many of those accepted will 
also have only limited playing rights. As usual we 
are giving preference to family members and other 
priority groups to ensure a balanced and long-term 
sustainable membership profile.

One of our key objectives is to continue to improve 
the course and the member playing experience. 
While long-term planning and course development 
has been disrupted we have nevertheless made 
progress. This includes, after many years of debate, 
agreement between our course architect and two 
independent external advisors, for a new greens 
grass policy and  a fairway grasses policy(in 
progress). Health and Safety continues to be a 
priority and members will be aware of issues we 
are having with risks to neighbours, near adjacent 
roads and the driving range. Risk mitigations and  
management practices are ongoing and  continually 
reviewed. 

The new driving range has been a real success. With 
Covid construction delays we officially opened in 
May. Though we only achieved 12 weeks of full usage 
during the year, current indications are that the new 
range will exceed the business case figures, and with 
minimal impact on the existing range figures.

The driving range is an important part of 
our three, core off-course areas of activity. 
Winstone’s continues to do well. We will shortly be 
commencing a major and long overdue upgrade 
of the kitchen and surrounding areas to ensure 
the food and beverage offerings remain at high 
standards to complement social activity in the 
club. Also, our retail outlet including the recently 
completed golf-fitting studio continues to provide 
an excellent range of golfing services.

Club competitions, scrambles and regional 
tournaments were significantly disrupted during 
the year. However, I would like to congratulate the 

winners of those competitions and trophies that 
were completed. Again, our thanks to all members 
for your understanding with what were constant 
reschedulings and in some cases cancellations of 
competitions.

The club has had a successful financial year despite 
disruption. As stated at the member’s information 
evening  it is essential we produce strong surpluses 
to provide funds for our ambitious future projects. 
While this year’s pre-depreciation surplus is less 
than budgeted we are not unhappy with this result. 
Although our debt levels have increased, primarily 
through member loans due to the driving range 
extension, our forward budgets make provision 
for these to be reduced. More detail regarding our 
financial results and position are contained in our 
2021 Finance report.

I would like to take this opportunity to thank all of our 
staff including our General Manager Chris Davies 
and our Course Superintendent Spencer Cooper 
for their loyalty and commitment during what was 
a difficult year. Lockdowns and restrictions are 
stressful for employees and our whole staff stepped 
up with real positivity and flexibility including many 
voluntarily agreeing to redeployment of duties. We 
did take advantage of government wage subsidy 
and resurgence payments where we could and it 
was pleasing this assisted us in ensuring our staff 
members were continually employed at normal 
remuneration levels.

I would also like to thank the board, committee 
chairs, committee members and all of our 
volunteers including Dads’ Army for what they have 
done during the past year. In particular I would like 
to acknowledge retiring board member Geoff Burns 
for his significant contributions, including chairing 
the Club Services Group. We are fortunate we have 
a large number of members who generously give 
their time and expertise to the club.

Finally, thanks to all members for your patience, 
understanding and enthusiasm during a challenging 
but nevertheless successful year. Also, thanks for 
helping make our club one we can all be proud of, 
and also one with a positive and exciting future.

 

Ian Braddock 

Club Captain and Chairman of the Board

REMUERA GOLF CLUB  ANNUAL REPORT

IN MEMORIAM
We record with sadness the passing 
of the following Members:  
Bruce Fergusson, John Fulford,  
Robert Mason, Brian Osmand,  
Doreen Taine, David Reid.
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OUR VISION - BE THE ‘THIRD PLACE’ 
FOR MEMBERS AND VISITORS
OUR PURPOSE 
Provide a golfing and social environment that is safe, inclusive, welcoming and relaxed, with a range of 
activities and opportunities for members and visitors.

OUR VALUES 
We…

RESPECT OUR MEMBERS’ INTERESTS
We keep members’ interests at the heart of all our decisions

CARE FOR OUR COMMUNITY
We acknowledge we are part of a wider community and have responsibilities to it

ASPIRE TO EXCELLENCE
We aspire to be the best we can be in everything we do 

ENCOURAGE CHANGE & INNOVATION
We look for new and better ways to do things whilst respecting the traditions of golf 

ACT WITH HONESTY & INTEGRITY 
We are honest and transparent and ‘do the right thing’

PROTECT OUR ENVIRONMENT
We are the ‘guardians’ of our environment for future generations

OUR MOST IMPORTANT BEHAVIOURS
BE POSITIVE AND OPTIMISTIC
Bring energy and enthusiasm to achieve our goals 

EMBRACE DIVERSITY
Value differences in people, thinking and styles

LISTEN AND COMMUNICATE OPENLY
Emphasise being valued, heard and empowered

ENCOURAGE TEAMWORK AND COLLABORATION 
Commit to one another and common goals

FAIR PLAY AND HONESTY
Model the principles of fair play and true sporting spirit 

 

THE THIRD PLACE CORE PILLARS
1. A PLACE TO LEARN AND PLAY  
 - GOLF EXPERIENCES SUCCESS STATEMENT

We know we are successful when... 

• We create safe, fun and enjoyable golfing experiences to suit a wide range of individual 
preference and styles

• We provide consistent quality playing experiences year-round
• We present a quality golf course that our members and guests are proud to play 
• We foster a physical and social environment for members and visitors that sustains  

the growth of golf.

 HOW

• Ensure course options are available to meet the range of member and visitor expectations 
• More clearly define course conditions including for all year playability, and on and off course 

infrastructure presentation
• Provide equitable access with flexible on course playing opportunities available for members
• Implement a competition programme that meets members’ needs, considers all handicap 

levels and enhances the elite
• Design innovative and enjoyable off course golf experiences, including maximising the use of 

the driving range 
• Provide a calendar of learn-and-play opportunities for young people and those new to golf.

2. A PLACE TO SOCIALISE  
 – OFF COURSE CLUB EXPERIENCES SUCCESS STATEMENT

We know we are successful when…

• People choose to visit for leisure, belonging and overall wellbeing
• We provide a generous welcome for members, guests and visitors to the club.

 HOW

• Clearly define the ‘Third Place’ experiences i.e.; the safe, welcoming and  
inclusive environment for all (a relaxed, friendly atmosphere)

• Evolve RGC as a community hub
• Offer a range of customised membership options with value-added offerings  
• Provide contemporary hospitality services for members and guests
• Develop long-term relationships with members and their families.

3. A PLACE FOR WELLBEING  
 – HEALTH AND WELLNESS SUCCESS STATEMENT

We know we are successful when …

• Members and staff recognise the contribution the club makes to a healthy  
and fulfilling life for them, their families and friends

• We provide a safe, welcoming and friendly environment. 

 HOW

• Provide complementary health and wellbeing services
• Create a memorable positive social impact of non-golf activities.

-RGC-

“WE KNOW WE ARE 
SUCCESSFUL WHEN …

MEMBERS AND 
STAFF RECOGNISE 
THE CONTRIBUTION 
THE CLUB MAKES 
TO A HEALTHY AND 
FULFILLING LIFE FOR 
THEM, THEIR FAMILIES 
AND FRIENDS.

WE PROVIDE A 
SAFE, WELCOMING 
AND FRIENDLY 
ENVIRONMENT.”

REMUERA GOLF CLUB  ANNUAL REPORT

UNDERPINNING PRINCIPLES 
These principles support Remuera (RGC) as the 
third place for all who visit 

(first place = home, second place = work)

• Considered and measured short and longer 
term financial outcomes

• Strong and sustainable business, 
environmental and social practices 

• Mutually beneficial stakeholder partnerships 
e.g. members, our employees our community, 
our visitors including enhancement of our 
relationship with and understanding of local 
iwi Ngāti Whātua Ōrākei and their values

• A positive culture that encourages diversity  
and inclusion 

• The best use of innovation and technologies 
• Good governance and leadership practices
• Excellent and competent staffing appointments 

are made across all portfolios
• Support and development opportunities for the 

staff team
• Clear and transparent communication to 

maximise member and staff engagement and 
involvement.

A PLACE  
FOR YOUR 

WELLBEING

A PLACE  
TO LEARN AND 

PLAY GOLF

A PLACE TO 
BELONG AND 

SOCIALISE
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COVID-19 - EMBRACING THE CHALLENGE
CHALLENGES

35% of 2021 spent under alert levels meant Covid 
uncertainty impacted significantly across many 
aspects of the club and services 
• club finances - estimated FYE revenue  

loss $921k
• our already interrupted 5 year course strategy 

and other related infrastructure and project 
delayed

• prevented members from enjoying the 
recreational and social aspects of the club

• club competitions cancelled or postponed
• significant staff impacts
• lockdowns and disruption to key operational areas 

- Winstone’s, Tui, our driving ranges and retail.

RESPONSES

Often it’s hard trying to find positive outcomes from 
Covid 19 – tough times can strengthen resolve…
• re-depolyed and supported staff to maintain  

strength in our brand and culture that values  
it’s people

• fast tracked new digital projects to grow revenue 
potential

• community sharing of the course and social 
goodwill

• opened and rebrand Velocity 
• finished the year with a surplus of $695,072, 

versus the previous year of $563,303 which is a 
positive and credible result.

14 FEBRUARY
AUCKLAND GOES TO 
ALERT LEVEL 3

17 FEBRUARY
AUCKLAND GOES TO 
ALERT LEVEL 2

28 FEBRUARY
AUCKLAND GOES TO 
ALERT LEVEL 3

12 MARCH
AUCKLAND  
GOES TO ALERT 
LEVEL 1

31 AUGUST
AUCKLAND & NORTHLAND 
REMAINS AT ALERT LEVEL 4, 
REST OF NZ MOVES TO  
ALERT LEVEL 3

22 FEBRUARY
AUCKLAND GOES TO 
ALERT LEVEL 1

7 MARCH
AUCKLAND GOES TO 
ALERT LEVEL 2

17 AUGUST
NZ GOES TO ALERT 
LEVEL 4

7 SEPTEMBER
NZ GOES TO ALERT 
LEVEL 2

AUCKLAND REMAINS 
AT ALERT LEVEL 4

7 OCTOBER
AUCKLAND REMAINS AT 
ALERT LEVEL 3 WITH SOME 
RESTRICTIONS EASED

TWO HOUSEHOLD  
BUBBLE GOLF

21 SEPTEMBER
AUCKLAND GOES TO 
ALERT LEVEL 3

9 NOVEMBER
AUCKLAND MOVES TO ALERT LEVEL 
3 STEP 2, MULTIPLE BUBBLE GOLF, 
RETAIL OPENS, NO HOSPITALITY

40,000

42,000

44,000

46,000

48,000

50,000

52,000

54,000

FYE 2017

56,000

44,745

FYE 2018

46,274

FYE 2019

49,407

FYE 2020

48,443

FYE 2021

53,358
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COVID-19 CHALLENGE

“THANK YOU FOR LETTING US ALL USE THE COURSE OVER  
THE LOCKDOWN! WE’VE BEEN EVERYDAY RAIN OR SHINE 
WITH A TODDLER & PUPPY WHO HAVE LOVED EVERY  
INCH OF THE COURSE! 
AS I’M SURE YOU KNOW, THE TUNNELS ARE THE BEST FOR 
YELLING, SINGING, AND TESTING ECHOES! WE’LL MISS GOING 
FOR OUR WALKS THERE BUT SO GLAD YOU CAN OPEN AGAIN.” 
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LEVEL 2

February

LEVEL 3.2 LEVEL 3.1 LEVEL 3 LEVEL 4 TOTAL

March August/Sep October November December

129 Days

COVID-19 DAY ALERT LEVELS (TO 3RD DEC 2021)

DA
YS

ALERT LEVELS

3 DECEMBER
AUCKLAND MOVES TO 
COVID PROTECTION 
FRAMEWORK - RED
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GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT
An effective governance structure providing the club with committees, policies, procedures and processes administered under the guidance of an elected Board 
of Directors.

Core Areas Actions / Outcomes 2021 Actions / Outcomes 2022 - 2024

Strategy & Policy Conducted external board planning workshop

Defined statement of purpose including values, 
behaviours, core pillars and underpinning 
principles (see pages 6 & 7)

Detailed planning document prepared with actions 
and outcomes for two-year horizon

Implemented child protection policy

Updated Board and committee protocols.

New and ongoing implementation of the vision document

Update and implement where necessary to ensure our culture is aligned to 
our values and behaviours

Review policies and practices supporting the vision statements to ensure 
they’re consistent and fit for purpose

Refresh & update documentation and implementation, including:
• Risk, delegated authority, membership inc. diversity and inclusion. 

Structure Introduced new working group to support GM & 
club services executive

Developed and implemented communication plan.

Ensure the board and committee structures enable us to deliver our vision 
including position descriptions, attributes, composition and terms of 
reference

Design and implement induction, training and professional development for:
• Board members, committee members and staff
• Compiled a club governance manual
• Reviewed and upgraded the club constitution
• Ongoing implementation and refinement of communication plan. 

Facilities Completed driving range building

Upgraded landscape and new courtyard area.

Prepare a LT buildings/facilities maintenance plan

Prepare a LT vision buildings/site plan. 

Financial Ongoing financial monitoring in light of driving 
range project and Covid interruptions.

Ensure the club is financially sustainable into the long-term including 
continuing to diversify income streams.

Management Ongoing Health & Safety practices & management

Implemented Covid-19 protocols

Implemented new management structure

Ongoing refinement of ICT infrastructure.

Ensure the new management structure is successfully implemented and 
delivering expected outcomes

Become employer of choice 

Continue and enhance the club’s “green mission” including maintaining GEO 
certification and continuous improvement 

Plan to enhance our stakeholder relations and a range of multi-partner 
alliances including local boards, Council, iwi, news media outlets, other golf 
clubs, corporate partners.

REMUERA GOLF CLUB  ANNUAL REPORT REMUERA GOLF CLUB  ANNUAL REPORT

BOARD ATTENDANCE
There were ten formal board meetings held between 2nd February to 2nd December 2021. Board members also attended committee meetings and a board 
strategy workshop throughout the year.

Meetings Attended

Ian Braddock (Chairman & Club Captain) 10

Ken Taylor (President) 7

James Kim (Men’s Golf Captain) 10

Wendy Williams (Women’s Golf Captain) 10

Pauline Harrison (Chair of Membership) 10

Andrew Millard (Chair of CTG) 10

Geoff Burns (Chair of Club Services Group) 10

Grant Marshall 10
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The CTG comprises independent external experts, 
RGC greens staff and members.

Obviously Covid continues to play a part in our 
decision making in the short-to-medium term, 
with a recommendation to the board that no major 
work be undertaken for the next 18-24 months to 
allow members to enjoy the course with minimal 
disruption.

Despite this the CTG has made some significant 
progress.

The decision has been made to convert our greens 
to a predominantly creeping bent sward, with a 
recommendation to go to the board shortly on the 
preferred grass species for converting fairways 
and rough. We are also investigating options 
for growing the turf either on or off site along 
with innovative cutting and laying techniques to 
shorten the time greens are out of play.

In the meantime, we have implemented an 
Integrated Pest Management Plan (IPM) for the 
control of Poa annua on our greens, along with 
improving the playability. We are planning to 
resurface 3 of the oldest greens early 2023.

Mitigation of the health and safety issues with 
the 3rd hole has been progressed with temporary 
netting and native tree planting. We are waiting on 
Council land owner consent to erect a permanent 
10m high safety net (similar to the driving range). 
We are all looking forward to having the full hole 
back in play.

The H&S issues with the 3rd hole, along with those 
at Chamberlain Park GC, has resulted in the CTG 
having a fresh look at the masterplan for the 6 
holes still to be redeveloped, to ensure we take 
all reasonable measures to protect the club, its 
members and the public. We are expecting to have 
a recommendation for the board to consider mid 
next year.

With no major works planned the focus has 
shifted to some key areas needing attention.

• Improving playability
• Replacement of the irrigation main line
• Stabilisation and armouring of 15th pond edges
• Cart paths

• Tree removal & native tree planting 
• Potential expansion of the onsite turf farm
• Netting on the 3rd hole
• Extension of the driving range netting
• Installation of artificial turf in front of DR’s to 

improve ball recovery, eliminate turf damage 
and improve the player experience.  

I’D LIKE TO THANK ALL THE CTG 
MEMBERS FOR THEIR VALUABLE 
CONTRIBUTIONS AND ROBUST DEBATE 
AND IN PARTICULAR A MASSIVE SHOUT 
OUT TO SPENCER AND HIS TEAM FOR 
THEIR CONTINUED QUEST TO MAKE 
THE COURSE AS GOOD AS IT CAN BE, 
PARTICULARLY THROUGH THE COVID 
LOCKDOWNS. 

SEE YOU ON THE COURSE.

Andrew Millard
Chair Course Technical Group  
and Board Member

COURSE AND ENVIRONMENT
THE COURSE TECHNICAL GROUP WAS FORMED IN MARCH 2021 TO PROVIDE THE 
RGC BOARD WITH SOME CLEAR GUIDANCE AND DIRECTION OF ALL ASPECTS OF 
THE GOLF COURSE REDEVELOPMENT AND COURSE IMPROVEMENTS.

Ensure the course and surrounding areas are planned and maintained to a high standard in line with the expectations of members and visitors, within defined budgets. 

Core Areas Actions / Outcomes 2021 Actions / Outcomes 2022-2024

Course 
Improvements 

Due to Covid disruptions and a focus on course conditioning, 
playability and availability, no major construction works were 
carried out over the last year
Implement Monday afternoon maintenance time, resulting in 
increased productivity and improved playability at other times
Trial hybrid turf on ‘walk off’ from 7th green successful
Improved traffic management to mitigate against increased traffic
Installed Bunker Dry devices to ‘old’ bunkers on holes 10 and 15 
with limited success. 

Minimise significant course disruption for 12-18 months to 
maximise playability for members
Review and refresh the course masterplan including 
considering recent and long-term golfing trends, H&S, etc
Implement masterplan changes plan to continue to improve 
playability over next 2 years including drainage, paths, 
irrigation, lakes, bunkers
Ensure on-course H&S pinchpoints are adequately addressed 
or mitigated including road holes and hole 3, trees etc.
Prepare (& maintain) a detailed course policy which 
is available on the website, used to drive annual plans, 
greenkeepers’ priorities and overall resource requirements.

Greens Ongoing monitoring of trials of 5th fairway, 5a green, and dual 
species bent grass putting green
New long-term greens policy agreed (Creeping Bent grass species)
Re-introduced and updated integrated management plan for 
management of creeping bent over Poa annua.

Finalise the greens management policy documents
Implement greens resurfacing programme (turf nursery 
procurement)
Implement IPM plan for greens.

Fairways Overall condition of fairways has been much improved over last 12 
months. This is due to increased water availability, water dosing 
system, more frequent aeration, using of custom-made organic 
fertilisers, improved weed controls and the use of plant growth 
regulators in Summer
Creeping Bent trial underway on the 5th fairway (successful) and 
agreed to adopt this option for future renovation of fairways
Couch (Cynodon sp.) considered and decided against due to high 
costs and poor conditioning/recovery in winter.

Finalise plan for fairway grasses species selection and 
implementation.

Trees & Gardens Contracted a landscaping company to maintain all gardens on and 
off the golf course with great results
Flower planting programme introduced for beautification
Commenced native tree planting to replace aging and dying Pines 
and Gum trees. 

Continue proactive tree management plan implementation.

Velocity Driving 
Range 

New irrigation and turf installed in front of the new building to 
allow for play off the grass for special events.
Landscaping around the range and clubhouse.

Complete landscaping around the driving range and clubhouse
Plan to improve drainage /surfaces on the range, introduce 
additional artificial turf.

Water Storage / 
Ponds

Nano bubble device fitted to lower pond
Long-term plan for safe water storage and water quality 
improvement developed
Pond maintenance implemented, cleaning and servicing of inlets 
and outlets and removed invasive/pest Koi fish removed.

Continue to improve water quality and storage
Install erosion protection for two lakes, and possible relining 
in future.

Environment GEO recertification under way for 2022
Carbon footprint calculations completed

• 16% decrease in CO2 emissions (2018 to 2019)
• Carbon positive 66 tons CO2 sequested in 2019.

Tree planting commenced to improve the H+S profile of the course 
and improving bird life habitat
Successful pest control measures implemented

• Over 250 Rabbits, 45 Possums and many other pests controlled.
Presented at 3 different seminars/conferences on sustainability
Well established partnership with Auckland Council with ongoing 
coordinated pest eradication.

Continue and enhance the club’s “green mission” including 
maintaining GEO certification and continuous improvement.

REMUERA GOLF CLUB  ANNUAL REPORT

16% DECREASE IN 
CO2 EMISSIONS 
(2018 TO 2019)

CARBON POSITIVE 66 
TONS CO2 SEQUESTED 
IN 2019

OVER 250 RABBITS, 
45 POSSUMS AND 
MANY OTHER PESTS 
CONTROLLED.
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MEMBERSHIP AND MARKETING 
Maximise the potential the club can offer to members and non-members in terms of golf, socialising and wellbeing.

Endorse our position as a friendly, progressive club. 

Core Areas Actions / Outcomes 2021 Actions / Outcomes 2022-2024

Membership Membership policy and principles work 
completed

Membership model data analysis work 
undertaken

Members personas work undertaken

Developed member recognition policy

Health & wellness plans interrupted due to 
Covid.

Continue to develop and refine member categories, rights and value 
propositions including:

• determine optimal size of membership and categories, and activity area
• increase membership levels in under-represented categories
• provide mentoring and/or onboarding support for new members
• implement a retention strategy for members
• conduct membership satisfaction surveys covering both on & off course, 

engagement and culture.

Implement the member recognition policy

Commence health and wellness initiatives.

Communications Communications plan implemented

Video newsletter launched

Online webinar format launched

Ongoing refinement of club website.

Continue to enhance and implement our member communications strategy 
including use of the website and social media

Launch e-calendar for club fixtures and events.

Branding & Marketing Develop membership onboarding process 
that provides new members with the best 
possible welcome to the club.

Implement driving range branding

Launch new website and booking platform for range

Implement marketing activations for range post Covid lockdown.

Throughout this period we have maintained 
constant monitoring as the changing face of 
club membership continues. We have spent 
considerable time identifying the data required to 
make decisions about the fairness and equity of 
tee time distribution among the various categories 
and we will continue to work with DotGolf to 
ensure we are able to obtain useful data.

To date we have, for example, identified that a 
small number (6%) of members account for a 
significant (20%) share of annual playing rounds. 
These insights will help us further develop a more 
formalised Fair Play policy.

The further evolution of the RGC member mix 
has focussed on several considerations in 2021 
including the introduction of new membership 
offerings designed to improve the diversity mix 
of male and female members, attract a younger 
age demographic, support broader playing 
preferences (e.g. different types of competition, 
more 9 hole, less frequency) and encourage off 
course engagement within RGC.

The funnel of potential members, medium term, 
will be considerably enhanced by the very positive 
engagement of golfers at the Velocity driving 
range, and family links of existing Heritage 
members. RGC is clearly popular, with a growing 

MEMBERSHIP COMMITTEE REPORT
AS HAS BEEN MENTIONED ELSEWHERE IN THIS ANNUAL REPORT AN 
UNDOUBTED FOCUS AND PRIORITY FOR EVERYONE, OVER THE LAST 12 MONTHS, 
HAS BEEN THE MODERATION OF THE UNPRECEDENTED HIGH BOOKING ACTIVITY 
DUE TO MEMBERS PLAYING SIGNIFICANTLY MORE GOLF. 

waitlist - despite increased entrance fees and 
more limited playing rights than existing heritage 
members - and we have had, in the last two years, 
a reduced number of annual resignations. We 
expect this popularity to continue in the short term 
despite the uncertainty, however the long term 
pre-Covid trends of declining golf membership  
are unknown.

Throughout this period the membership 
committee has also completed and implemented 
a code of conduct, and in addition, a long overdue 
RGC Awards and Recognition programme for 
members and employees has been developed and 
will be implemented in the 1st quarter of 2022. The 
supportive pastoral work that members and staff 
have undertaken with each other during Covid, will 
form a fundamental part of this programme.

A massive thanks to all those who have contributed 
to the work of the membership committee for 
their commitment and energy as we drive towards 
our goal of building a membership offering that 
can be enjoyed by families and individuals of all 
backgrounds and experiences.

Pauline Harrision
Chair of the Membership Committee

MEMBERSHIP NUMBERS 
PLAYING Female Male Total 2021 Total 2020 Total 2019

Full, 18 Hole 112 453 565 477 440

Weekday 66 49 115 165 206

9 Hole 176 48 224 199 179

Flexi 59 161 220 242 248

Intermediate (20 - 29yrs) 6 112 118 82 57

Junior (up to 19yrs) 32 107 139 135 121

Life, Honorary & Veteran 14 15 29 31 35

Corporate 3 58 61 56 56

Total Playing 468 1003 1471 1387 1342

I90 Discount (incl above) 84 169 253 228 220

Associate/Non playing 39 76 115 110 123

Total Associate 507 1079 1586 1497 1465

“THE FUNNEL OF 
POTENTIAL MEMBERS, 
MEDIUM TERM, WILL 
BE CONSIDERABLY 
ENHANCED BY THE 
VERY POSITIVE 
ENGAGEMENT OF 
GOLFERS AT THE 
VELOCITY DRIVING 
RANGE, AND FAMILY 
LINKS OF EXISTING 
HERITAGE MEMBERS.”.
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Club services advisory group:

Geoff Burns (Chair), David Burton, Megan King, Grant Marshall, Tony Dangerfield (Director of Club 
Services)

The scope of club services work covers service and supply of all off course activities, including the Velocity 
driving range, retail (including online shop), fittings, coaching and hospitality (Winstone’s and events).

The club services activities in 2021 have had two modes:

1) The first mode was the significant and very successful launch and operationalisation of the 
Velocity driving range, and managing business as usual, including as positively as possible for 
members during the disruptive Covid lockdowns. 

 Some interesting business-as-usual facts are:

• 24,320 cups of coffee and over 30,000 litres of beer were served from Winstone’s in the (Covid-
interrupted) last 12 months

• Our members walked over 325,000 kms playing golf at Remuera Golf Club (RGC) in the last 12 
months, during which 3,685 golf balls were sold by the Pro Shop team, and if we laid end-to-end 
every golf club they fitted and sold, it would stretch from the 1st  tee to the 5th green!

• The Velocity driving range has over 4,000 hours of available sessions each month. RGC members 
make up over a third of all sessions used.

2) The second mode is preparing the foundations for an ambitious 2022. This is based on improved 
insights of member and guest expectations, within the welcoming and inclusiveness framework of 
RGC as the “third place”.
Specific activities in 2022 will include:

• Further development of the Velocity driving range, with enhanced promotions and loyalty activity 
for our Velocity and RGC members

• The successful launch of our new improved Velocity fitting studio experience
• Enhancing the functionality and presentation of the kitchen and Winstone’s with a focus on greatly 

improving the outdoor courtyard area
• Supporting the development of all the club services teams, including our coaching team (New 

Zealand’s largest club coaching fraternity)
• Stimulating more ladies engagement at RGC, initially focussing on our coaching and retail services.

We would like to thank Tony and all the club services leaders and their teams, for the outstanding 
commitment to maintaining high service levels through some difficult Covid times and the challenges of 
introducing new offerings in 2021.

Geoff Burns
Chair of Club Services Group

CLUB SERVICES 
Promote the enjoyment of golf through a varied golf event program which meets the needs and expectations of all categories of members and visitors.

Continue to develop and improve the clubs off-course activities that enhance social and well-being experiences.

Core Areas Actions / Outcomes 2021 Actions / Outcomes 2022-2024

ALL Ongoing customer service training plan (Covid- 
interrupted)

SOP’s fully updated and trained in

Delayed launch of calendar of events (monthly 
member engagement programme) (Covid-
interrupted).

Complete customer service training plan and implementation

Commence calendar of events (monthly member engagement) to be launched

Umbrella women’s engagement on all initiatives.

On-Course  Golf Covid focus to allow for maximum member rounds

Re-vitalising junior programme with dedicated 
resource for coaching and administration/
communication

Tournament week Covid-interrupted, launch 2022.

Review and enhance the golf-playing experience including:
• ensure we have the right balance between social and competitive play
• the weekly golf schedule and playing times are fair
• consider a potential merger of match and ladies committees
• encourage junior golf and development
• consider increased category interaction
• consider widening of competitions & scrambles and club days
• ensure resulting playing program meets members needs.

Re-launch Tournament week.

Off-Course Golf Successful opening of new driving range with 
+30% member usage.

Refine and continuously improve the Velocity range business model including 
proving the original business case.

Driving Range Completed comprehensive service training with all 
range team

Off-peak event business focus

Implemented new range management system.

Continue to enhance the player experience

Develop pathway plans for learners including juniors.

Coaching Two additional coaches joined team, one coach to 
be very focused on junior programme

Launch online booking platform for coaching.

Grow coaching and player development programmes

Promote online coaching platform

Scope coaching / player development facility.

Retail More varied product lines (better quality brands)

Planned major promotions (shoe sale / 50% off 
sale)

Launched online retail shop

Improved ladies golf retail products

Build-out and launch of new fitting studio including 
online booking platform.

Retail – CRM / professional sales and service delivery / ladies golf products

fitting studio / hit our targets.

Winstone’s SOP’s fully updated and staff trained in

New menu items added

Delayed launch of  monthly member engagement 
programme.

Progress the continuing development of the food and beverage services with 
emphasis on quality, consistency, presentation and value

Refurbish the kitchen areas, related storage facilities, Winstone’s and courtyard.

Health & 
Wellness

Covid-interrupted. Plan and implement near term H&W experiences

Develop a long term concept plan for complementary H&W services at the club, 
including facilities.

CLUB SERVICES ADVISORY GROUP 
2021 REPORT
THIS IS A NEW GROUP ESTABLISHED IN EARLY 2021 AS A SUITABLY-QUALIFIED 
SUPPORT BODY TO THE GM AND THE NEWLY-CREATED EXECUTIVE ROLE OF 
DIRECTOR OF CLUB SERVICES.

REMUERA GOLF CLUB  ANNUAL REPORT

“ESTABLISHING 
AND ALIGNING THE 
FOUNDATIONS TO 
MEET MEMBER 
AND GUEST 
EXPECTATIONS, 
WITH A WELCOMING 
AND INCLUSIVE 
ENVRONMENT.”
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Snap lockdowns over summer and the current Alert 
Level 4 and Alert Level 3 lockdown going for over 3 
months significantly disrupted our playing calendar. 
This also restricted opportunities to provide new 
experiences for our members, such as tournament 
week which was planned for the beginning of 
November 2021. The disruptions were far-reaching, 
not just impacting our club events but also disrupting 
representative events in Auckland and across New 
Zealand. Despite the disruptions, Remuera was able 
to experience a lot of success in both the men’s and 
women’s fields.

The best-performing Remuera Golf Club Pennant 
teams were:

• Men’s Interclub 3 team recording back-to-back 
wins, defeating Titirangi in the final

• Women’s Betty Faesen #1 Team won for the 
second time (having won the last completed 
season in 2019)

• Weekend women’s team winning the 18-hole 
Match Play section A title.

It is great to see the continued success with our club 
Pennant teams, especially with all our other men’s 
Pennant teams having reached either the semi-finals 
or the final. The Championship 2 team narrowly 
losing to Whitford Park in the final, while the Bissett 
Shield team, Championship 1 and the Interclub 2 all 
narrowly lost in their respective semi-finals.

For 2022, our club has been granted an extra team in 
the men’s Championship 2 division to help even up 
the numbers. This team will focus on developing our 
next group of juniors by having them play with some 
of our more experienced senior players.

Although the Auckland representative calendar 
was severely affected by the Auckland lockdown, 
our players continue to feature strongly in Auckland 
representative teams. 

• The Battle of the Bridge – Auckland vs North 
Harbour: Nathan Smith, Daniel Freeman, Ryan 
Xie, Eamon Wairepo and Robby Turnbull were 
members of the junior team.

• Auckland vs Wellington: Matthew Cormack, as 
Captain, along with Rakesh Patel were selected 
for the senior team. Nathan Smith, Finlay 
McKechnie, Eamon Wairepo, Daniel Freeman 
and Robby Turnbull made five of the six members 
of the junior team and they all contributed to 
another win over Wellington. The women’s team 
was also victorious with Chloe Lam, Kelly Wu and 
Rebekah Blackwell-Chin representing our club 
in the team.

The disrupted playing year has resulted in our 
3 groups, the 18-hole, 9-hole and weekend 
ladies, missing out on playing their 2021 two 
main competitions, the club and strokeplay 
championships, but we had excellent results earlier 
in the year, competing in Pennants and Interclub.

Designing the 2022 calendar is a challenge. 
We endeavour to take into account the varying 
preferences of our diverse range of RGC lady 
golfers. It is very important to encourage our 
younger elite players while satisfying our social 
golfers. However, at the end of the day we are a 
sports club so should be providing sufficient, varied 
competitive opportunities throughout the year so 
that RGC can be represented well at Auckland level 
and beyond. Some of our former competitions will 
be re-introduced.

Our committee is equally represented by 18 and 
9-hole players and I would like very much to thank 
them for all for their support during this disjointed, 
2021 year. To John Sims and Richard Jones, thank 
you for stepping in to Stephanie Grant’s shoes and 
we welcome her baby daughter.

18-HOLE
Pennants – we entered 7 teams into the Auckland 
competition this year, having enough top players 
to enter 2 teams in Betty Faesen, the top Auckland 
competition, where, ably managed by Esther 
Cowper, our teams came 1st and 4th. Our weekend 
team won their competition and one of our 3 
midweek teams reached the playoffs.

We have been fortunate to continue to welcome 
new members, many from Grange/Royal Auckland 
who have assimilated into our Tuesday/Thursday 
and weekend families. These ladies have boosted 
our numbers as we always have natural movement 
to our fabulous 9 hole group by some of our senior 
18 holers.

9-HOLE 
Interclub – for the first time Remuera had 2 
interclub teams competing. We won the Eastern 
zone to make the Auckland Tri-angular series 
(unfortunately Covid-cancelled). The second team 
won the FAB series competition.

Remuera hosted the 9 hole District Tournament this 
year which was won by our talented Sarah Hills.

Matthew Cormack was selected to captain the 
Auckland interprovincial team for the third year in 
a row for the New Zealand men’s interprovincial 
tournament in Ashburton. Having previously led 
the team to victory in 2019, it was disappointing 
when the team was unable to go due to travel 
restrictions. The Auckland junior interprovincial team 
also couldn’t participate in its tournament due to 
travel restrictions, with the tournament eventually 
cancelled while in progress due to the Covid 
outbreak in Waikato. Nathan Smith was picked as 
captain, while Robby Turnbull, Daniel Freeman and 
Eamon Wairepo were picked in the team looking to 
win for the third year in a row.

Our club is also seeing a lot of promise in our next 
group of juniors, with a number of our juniors 
being selected for Auckland junior development 
teams during the year.  These juniors include 
Finlay McKechnie, Max Clarke, Jax Loh, Sebastian 
McKenzie, Ishaan Shan, Jordan Jones, Hannah 
Murchison, Jackie Jang and Esther Papuni.

Given the constant re-arrangements and in some 
circumstances cancellations, our club competitions 
have been extremely well-supported throughout 
the year. We would like to thank all our members 
for their patience and understanding through this 
disrupted period. We would also like to congratulate 
all the winners of competitions and trophies we have 
been able to complete. A special congratulations to 
Matthew Cormack for winning his second Champion 
of Champions title at the close of last year.

A big thank you to the on-course and greenkeeping 
teams, who have had to manage the constant changes 
because of the disruptions throughout the year. My 
thanks to my fellow committee members for their time, 
support, and commitment during the year.

As we look towards the 2022 season, we welcome 
the opportunity to continue providing members 
with an enhanced playing calendar and competition 
framework, ongoing support with any changes 
to the Rules of Golf, protecting the integrity of the 
handicapping system including following up on cards 
not returned and liaising with Auckland Golf through 
delegate representation. 

Thanks again and we look forward to serving all 
members in 2022.

James Kim
Men’s Golf Captain
Chairman Golf & Match 

A new Auckland wide, 9 hole strokeplay 
competition named “Sue Bunt” was introduced 
this year and is proving popular and normally time 
aligns with the LGU competition week.

As a very socially active part of our club, several 
groups also enjoyed self-organised, fun golf  
trips away. 

The Hub/Pro shop has been turning over plenty 
of ladies apparel and clubs this year. It is always 
a pleasure to be greeted by name and to willingly 
have any questions answered with a smile. Thank 
you Conal Cooke and the team.

We are proving to be keen patrons of our new 
driving range, sometimes with our extended 
families, or to host social functions while enjoying 
that beautiful view.

The board is endeavouring to improve the 
communications to members. The webinar was 
very informative, the videos will be regular and 
may I encourage you all to read the Weekly Wrap 
to stay up to date. I would like to particularly 
thank our highly competent Chris Davies and 
his administration team for keeping everything 
running smoothly behind the scenes and 
facilitating these initiatives.

During lockdown it was good to see some of 
our staff being redeployed, particularly outside, 
beautifying our course and planting trees, a good 
outcome from this restrictive time and a lasting 
legacy for us all to enjoy in the future. Thank 
you to our greenies, headed by Spencer Cooper. 
We are all proud of our course which is looking 
magnificent at the moment.

RGC ladies are particularly looking forward to 
social interaction again, traffic lights allowing, 
when we are re-admitted to Winstone’s 19th café by 
Grant Nicholas and his hospitable team and where 
a lot more than golf is shared.

Wendy Williams
Women’s Club Captain

REMUERA GOLF CLUB  ANNUAL REPORT

GOLF AND MATCH REPORT
THE 2021 SEASON HAS BEEN QUITE A DIFFICULT YEAR FOR THE COMMITTEE IN TERMS OF DELIVERING ITS NEW FOCUS OF 
PROMOTING A VARIED GOLF EVENT PROGRAMME WHICH MEETS THE NEEDS AND EXPECTATIONS OF ALL OUR MEMBERS 
ON TOP OF OUR PRIMARY TASKS.

WOMEN’S GOLF REPORT
OUR 479 LADY GOLFERS CONTINUE TO THRIVE AT REMUERA AND HAVE BEEN 
VERY PLEASED TO PLAY TOGETHER AGAIN SINCE THE LIFTING OF COVID 
LOCKDOWN RESTRICTIONS. 

“DESIGNING THE 
2022 CALENDAR 
IS A CHALLENGE. 
WE ENDEAVOUR TO 
TAKE INTO ACCOUNT 
THE VARYING 
PREFERENCES OF OUR 
DIVERSE RANGE OF 
RGC LADY GOLFERS.”

“ALTHOUGH 
THE AUCKLAND 
REPRESENTATIVE 
CALENDAR WAS 
SEVERELY-AFFECTED 
BY THE AUCKLAND 
LOCKDOWN, OUR 
PLAYERS CONTINUE TO 
FEATURE STRONGLY 
IN AUCKLAND 
REPRESENTATIVE 
TEAMS”.  
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Independent

AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF REMUERA GOLF CLUB (INCORPORATED)

OPINION
We have audited the financial statements of Remuera Golf Club Incorporated 
(‘the Club’), which comprise:

•  the statement of financial position as at 30 September 2021; 
• the statement of comprehensive revenue and expense for the year  

then ended;
•  the statement of changes in net assets/equity for the year then ended;
• the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and 
• the notes to the financial statements, which include significant 

accounting policies. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements on pages 22 to 37 
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Remuera 
Golf Club Incorporated as at 30 September 2021, and its financial 
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
Public Benefit Entity Standards Reduced Disclosure Regime issued by the 
New Zealand Accounting Standards Board.  

BASIS FOR OPINION
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing 
(New Zealand) (ISAs (NZ)).  Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial 
statements section of our report.   

We are independent of the Club in accordance with Professional and Ethical 
Standard 1 International Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners (including 
International Independence Standards) (New Zealand) issued by the New 
Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  

Other than in our capacity as auditor we have no relationship with, or interests 
in, the Club.  

OTHER INFORMATION
The executive committee members are responsible for the other 
information.  The other information comprises the annual report pages, 
1 to 20 and 38 to 43 (but does not include the financial statements and 
our auditor’s report), which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s 
report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other 
information and we do not express any form of audit opinion or assurance 
conclusion thereon.  

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility 
is to read the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears 
to be materially misstated.  If, based on the work we have performed on the 
other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, 
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, 
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.  

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
MEMBERS FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The executive committee members are responsible, on behalf 
of Remuera Golf Club Incorporated, for the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Public 
Benefit Entity Standards Reduced Disclosure Regime, and for such 
internal control as those charged with governance determine is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the financial statements, the executive committee members 
are responsible, on behalf of the Club, for assessing the Club’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
the executive committee members either intend to liquidate the Club or 
to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.   

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (NZ) will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the decisions of 
users taken on the basis of these financial statements. A further description 
of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is 
located at the XRB’s website at:  
https://www.xrb.govt.nz/assurance-standards/auditors-responsibilities/audit-report-8 

WHO WE REPORT TO
This report is made solely to the members, as a body. Our audit has been 
undertaken so that we might state to the members those matters we are 
required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume 
responsibility to anyone other than Remuera Golf Club Incorporated and  
the members as a body, for our work, for this report, or for the opinions we 
have formed.  

 

 RSM Hayes Audit 4 December 2021
 Auckland

These financial statements are to be read in conjunction with the attached notes and the Auditor’s Report These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the Notes to the Financial Statements
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As noted in last year’s report we landed on a 
budgeted surplus before depreciation of $760,000 
provided there were no further lockdowns 
and a $200,000 reduction to this under Covid 
scenario forecast. To actually finish the year with 
a surplus of $695,072, versus the previous year 
of $563,303 (while we had nearly 8 weeks of L3 
or more lockdowns) is a very credible result. This 
translated to a Net Operating Surplus of $32,750 
against the deficit of the previous year which 
has seen a small improvement in the club’s net 
financial position which continues to be sound.

Revenue for the year finished at $7,239,920 which 
was a considerable increase on the $5,877,123 for 
the previous year and slightly up on that budgeted 
– and this was against the background of losing 
over 9 weeks (level 2 or more) of full operations 
because of Covid which impacted each of 
Winstone’s, golf services and the driving range but 
they still exceeded budget and the previous year. 
In addition, we received government subsidies 
of $480,223. With golfing participation rates on 
a high there were good yields from subscriptions 
and entrance fees although this meant we couldn’t 
accommodate previous levels of green fees and 
corporate days. 

Expenditure was well up on the previous year 
reflecting increased activity levels across all 
sectors but was generally in line with budget. 
Net Operating Surplus before Depreciation of 
$695,072 then allowed us to upgrade the course 
plant and machinery, install further netting to the 
driving range and complete the fit out of the new 
driving range.

A continued focus for the year was completion of 
the driving range development and its funding. 
The final construction cost of the development 
of $2.1m compares to the budget of $1.7m with 
the difference being variations arising from 
groundwork stabilisation and specification 
changes.  Additional works were also undertaken 
on the surrounding courtyard and landscaping. 
This additional expenditure has been funded from 
a combination of member loans and surpluses. 
Although the opening of the new range has been 
interrupted by Covid lockdowns, early indications 
and feedback are extremely positive and our 
financial projections are being exceeded.

2021 FINANCE REPORT
IF WE THOUGHT THE 2020 YEAR PRESENTED US WITH SOME CHALLENGES FROM 
THE IMPACT OF COVID, THEY PALED INTO INSIGNIFICANCE COMPARED TO WHAT 
WE ENCOUNTERED IN 2021 AND CONTINUE TO ENCOUNTER INTO 2022. 

At balance date member loans totalled $1,942,500 
which was up by a net $119,000 on the prior year. 
The smallish increase was fundamentally to cover 
the increased cost of the driving range build. 
Interest in the loan scheme continues to be very 
strong and offers once again exceeded the ask so 
a very sincere thank you to all those members who 
have supported the scheme.

Looking ahead in the current year we are 
budgeting for a Net Operating Surplus before 
Depreciation of $958,000 after providing for Covid 
L3 in some form for a total of 8.5 weeks, which 
unfortunately is already going to be exceeded. 
Major items of capital expenditure budgeted 
include the continuation of greens re-surfacing, 
drainage and upgrading drainage equipment, 
renovation of the ponds, upgrading the kitchen, 
Winstone’s and the courtyard.

As is always the case there are a number of 
competing projects for the club’s financial 
resources but we believe with the programme we 
have developed along with the on-going support 
of members across all the clubs activities we can 
deliver on these. 

To Chris Davies and his team thank you for 
ensuring the clubs financials are once again 
carefully and properly managed.

Finally, my thanks to members of the finance 
committee, Mike Gault, Vicki Salmon, Ian 
Braddock, Brett Winstanley and Jan Martin 
for their attention and diligence in a tricky 
environment but also their good humour.

Maurice Kidd
Chairman Finance Committee

“DESPITE 
COVID RELATED 
DISRUPTIONS 
SIGNIFICANT 
PROGRESS WAS 
MADE DURING THE 
YEAR INCLUDING 
THE OPENING OF THE 
NEW DRIVING RANGE 
AND THE CLUB IS IN 
A STRONG POSITION 
GOING FORWARD.”
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Statement of comprehensive

REVENUE AND EXPENSE
Statement of changes in

NET ASSETS/EQUITY
For the Year Ended 30 September 2021

Notes  2021  2020 
 $  $ 

Revenue from Exchange Transactions
Member Subscriptions  1,984,659 1,743,403 
Winstone's  1,423,876 1,152,655 
Golf Hub  2,012,052 1,549,104 
Corporate Subscriptions  282,824 238,079 
Green Fees  206,477 248,469 
Development Levy  250,817 232,809 
Entrance Fees  271,457 161,294 
Finance Levy  52,704 43,522 
Sundry Income 5.20  226,556 175,599 
Member Services  30,427 27,076 
Instalment Levy  18,747 15,755 
Gain on Sale of Asset  (899) 7,334 

Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions
Covid Government Subsidies  480,223 282,024

Total Revenue  7,239,920  5,877,123  

Less Expenditure
Course 6.3  1,262,055 1,253,236 
Facilities 6.4  669,033 462,224 
Administration 6.6  851,464 697,510 
Golf Hub 6.2  2,180,246 1,647,726 
Winstone's - Cost of Sales  590,267 485,031 
Winstone's - Overhead 6.5  804,203 654,056 
Total Expenditure  6,357,268  5,199,783 

Operating Surplus before depreciation and finance cost  882,652  677,340  

Depreciation 5.3  662,322  618,528 
Operating Surplus before net finance costs   220,330    58,812  
Finance Costs  188,233 114,267 
Finance Income  653 230 
Less Net Finance Costs 6.7  187,580 114,037 

Operating surplus / (deficit) for the year  32,750 (55,225) 
Other comprehensive revenue and expense  -  -
Total comprehensive revenue and expense  32,750 (55,225)

The operating surplus for the year and total Comprehensive Revenue and Expense are attributable to the members of the club.

The Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense is to be read in conjunction with the attached notes and the 
Independent Auditor’s Report.

For the year ended 30 September 2021

2021 2020
$ $

Accumulated comprehensive revenue and expense
Accumulated comprehensive revenue and expense at 1 October  3,712,481 3,767,706 

Operating surplus/(deficit) for the year  32,750 (55,225)

Other comprehensive revenue and expense  -   - 

Accumulated comprehensive revenue and expense at 30 September  3,745,231 3,712,481  

The Statement of Changes in Net Assets / Equity is to be read in conjunction with the attached notes and the Independent 
Auditor’s Report.

The Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense is to be read in conjunction with the attached notes and the Independent Auditor’s Report The Statement of Changes in Net Assets / Equity is to be read in conjunction with the attached notes and the Independent Auditor’s Report
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Statement of

FINANCIAL POSITION
Statement of

CASH FLOWS
As at 30 September 2021

Notes 2021 2020
 $  $ 

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 7  351,024 2,089,156 
Accounts Receivable (from exchange transactions) 8  42,908 9,868 
Accounts Receivable (from non - exchange transactions) 8  -   10,359 
Prepayments  54,282 55,207 
Inventories 5.5  531,883 412,903 
Total Current Assets  980,097 2,577,493 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Plant and Equipment 5.1  8,394,370 5,933,227 
Total Non-Current Assets  8,394,370 5,933,227 

TOTAL ASSETS  9,374,467  8,510,720  

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Subscriptions in Advance 5.10  1,581,377 1,412,564 
Trade Payables (under exchange transactions) 11  639,638 724,944 
Trade Payables (under non exchange transactions) 11  1,474 163,347 
Members' Match Funds 5.6  35,581 32,080 
Members' Cards  191,657 137,825 
Finance lease 5.7  153,472 69,489 
Bank loan 5.9  800,000 - 
Members' Loan Scheme 5.8  357,500 231,000 
Total Current Liabilities  3,760,699 2,771,249 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Members Loan Scheme 5.8  1,585,000 1,592,500 
Term Loan 5.9  - 400,000 
Finance lease 5.7  283,537 34,490 
Total Non-Current Liabilities  1,868,537 2,026,990 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  5,629,236 4,798,239 
NET ASSETS  3,745,231 3,712,481 
Represented by: Accumulated Comprehensive Revenue and Expense  3,745,231 3,712,481 

The Statement of Financial Position is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and the Independent  
Auditor’s Report.

Ian Braddock 
Club Captain 
Date: 26th November 2021

For the year ended 30 September 2021

Notes 2021 2020
 $  $

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from exchange transactions
Cash was provided from:
Receipts from members and visitors  6,985,943 5,852,571 
Interest received  653 230 

Receipts from non-exchange transactions
Wage subsidy  338,305 423,942 

Cash was disbursed to:
Payments to suppliers and employees  (6,707,086) (5,121,243)
Interest paid  (134,506) (66,602)
Net cash flows from operating activities  483,309 1,088,898 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash was provided from:
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment  1,150 7,826  

Cash was applied to:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and course development  (2,628,360) (551,706)

Net cash flows used in investing activities  (2,627,210) (543,880)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash was provided from:
Members’ Loan Scheme - Receipts  350,000 1,000,000 
Bank Loan  400,000 400,000 

Cash was applied to:
Members' Loan Scheme - New loans  (231,000) (42,500)
Repayment of finance lease  (113,231) (77,028)

Net cash flows from financing activities  405,769 1,280,472 

Net increase / (decrease) in cash held  (1,738,132) 1,825,490 
Add opening cash brought forward  2,089,156 263,666 
Cash and cash equivalents at year end 7  351,024 2,089,156 

The Statement of Cashflows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and the Independent Auditor’s Report.

Chris Davies 
General Manager 
Date: 26th November 2021

The Statement of Financial Position is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and the Independent Auditor’s Report The Statement of Cashflows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and the Independent Auditor’s Report
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1.  REPORTING ENTITY

Remuera Golf Club Incorporated (“The Club”) is a club incorporated under 
the Incorporated Societies Act 1908 and is registered as a charitable entity 
under the Charities Act 2005.  The financial statements of the Club have 
been prepared in accordance with Public Benefit Entity Standards – Reduced 
Disclosure Regime (“PBE Standards - RDR”).

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
a)  Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 
Charities Act 2005 which is compliant with New Zealand Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice (“NZ GAAP”). They comply with the Public Benefit 
Entity Standards Reduced Disclosure Regime (“PBE Standards RDR”) as 
appropriate for Tier 2 not-for-profit public benefit entities, for which all 
reduced disclosure regime exemptions have been adopted. 

For the purposes of complying with NZ GAAP, the Club is a public benefit not-
for-profit entity and is eligible to apply PBE Standards RDR on the basis that it 
does not have public accountability and it is not defined as large. 

b)  Measurement basis
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis.

c)  Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in New Zealand Dollars ($), which is 
the functional and presentation currency, rounded to the nearest dollar.

There has been no change in the functional currency of the club during the year.

3. SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Club’s financial statements requires management 
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the Club’s 
disclosures. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result 
in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of 
assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

a)  Judgements:
In the process of applying the Club’s accounting policies, management has 
made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the 
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

• Classification of non-financial assets as cash generating or non-cash 
generating assets for the purposes of assessing impairment indicators 
and impairment testing.

The majority of property, plant and equipment held by the Club is classified 
as cash generating assets. 

b)  Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Useful lives and residual values
The useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the 
following indicators to inform potential future use and value from disposal:

• The condition of the asset based on the assessment of experts 
employed by the Club

• The nature of the processes in which the asset is deployed
• Availability of funding to replace the asset.

Changes in accounting estimates
There have been no changes in the accounting estimates for the current 
reporting period.

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a)  Revenue
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic 
benefits or service potential will flow to the Club and the revenue can be 
reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue 
is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, 
taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding 
taxes or duty.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before 
revenue is recognised.

i)  Revenue from exchange transactions
INTEREST REVENUE
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest rate. 
Effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future 
cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument 
or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the 
financial asset or liability. 

ENTRANCE FEES
As at 1 October 2018 new members have an option to pay the entrance fees 
in one lump sum or in regular invoiced instalments over a period of up to 3 
years. Entrance fees permit only admission as a member and thus Entrance 
fees are recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow 
to the Club and the fees are reliably measurable. Prior to 1 October 2018, 
new members had an option to pay the entrance fees in one lump sum or 
in regular invoiced instalments over a period of up to 10 years. Revenue is 
recognised when members are invoiced.

WINSTONE’S, GOLF HUB AND GREEN FEES 
Income generated from Winstone’s, Golf Hub and Green Fees are 
recognised upon receipt, as the risks and rewards of the goods are 
transferred at this time.  

SUBSCRIPTIONS
Members and corporate subscriptions are recognised as revenue on an equal 
instalment basis over the period to which they relate. 

Any monies received prior to 30 September each year for the following year 
are recognised as income received in advance .

Any refund of annual subscriptions will only be made at the discretion of the 
committee and then only in special circumstances.

MATCH FEES AND MEMBER VOLUNTEER ACTIVITY
Match fees arising from either part of the annual subscription charged 
to members or from voluntary activities are applied to meet the costs of 
the competitions for the season. Any surplus or deficit arising from these 
competitions is carried forward to future competition activity.

FINANCE LEVY
The levy amount received for funding purposes from the members in 
2020/2021 was $52,704 (2020: $43,522). 

ii)  Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Non-exchange transactions are those where the Club receives an inflow of 
resources (i.e. cash and other tangible or intangible items) but provides no 
(or nominal) direct consideration in return.

These funds are recognised when the conditions attached to the grant or 
subsidy has been complied with. Where there are unfulfilled conditions, the 
amount relating to the unfulfilled condition is recognised as a liability and 
released to revenue as the conditions are fulfilled. 

b)  Employee benefits
i)  Short term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefit liabilities are recognised when the Club 
has a legal or constructive obligation to remunerate employees for 
services provided with 12 months of reporting date, and is measured on 
an undiscounted basis and expensed in the period in which employment 
services are provided.

c)  Finance costs
Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of a qualifying asset are recognised in surplus or 
deficit using the effective interest method, otherwise borrowing costs are 
capitalised as part of a qualifying asset’s initial cost.

d) Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Club 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

The Club derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the 
cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the 
contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all the risks 
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest 
in transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Club is 
recognised as a separate asset or liability.

The Club derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations 
are discharged, cancelled, or expire.

The Club also derecognises financial assets and financial liabilities when 
there has been significant changes to the terms and/or the amount of 
contractual payments to be received/paid.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in 
the statement of financial position when, and only when, the Club has a legal 
right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to 
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.  

The Club classifies financial assets as loans and receivables.

The Club classifies financial liabilities at amortised cost.

Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value, plus for those 
financial instruments not subsequently measured at fair value through 
surplus or deficit, directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement is dependent on the classification of the financial 
instrument, and is specifically detailed in the accounting policies below.

LOANS AND RECEIVABLES
Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments that are not quoted in an active market.

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using 

These financial statements are to be read in conjunction with the attached notes and the Auditor’s Report These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the Notes to the Financial Statements
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• Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and short 
term deposits with an original maturity of 3 months or less that are 
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value.

• Investing activities are those activities relating to acquisition, holding and 
disposal of property, plant and equipment and investments.

• Financing activities are those activities which result in a change in the 
size and composition of the capital structure of the Club. This includes 
both equity and debt not falling within the definition of cash.

• Operating activities include all transactions and other events that are not 
investing or financing activities.

h)  Equity
Equity is the member’s interest in the Club measured as the difference between 
total assets and total liabilities. Equity is made up of the following component: 

ACCUMULATED COMPREHENSIVE REVENUE AND EXPENSE
Accumulated comprehensive revenue and expense is the Club’s accumulated 
surplus or deficit since the formation of the Club adjusted for transfers to/from 
specific reserves.

i) Income Tax
No provision has been made for income tax in the financial statements because 
the Club is a registered charity and is therefore exempt from  
income tax.  

j)  Goods and services tax
Items of income and expenditure are stated exclusive of Goods and Services 
Tax. All items in the statement of financial position are net of GST, with the 
exception of receivables and payables, which include GST.

k)  Inventory
Inventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition. To the extent that 
inventory was received through non-exchange transactions (excluding 
donations), the cost of the inventory is its fair value at the date of acquisition.

After initial recognition, inventories held for resale are valued at the lower of 
cost and net realisable value. 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course 
of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs 
necessary to make the sale, exchange or distribution.

l) Leases
OPERATING LEASES
Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and 
benefits of ownership of the leased items are classified as operating leases. 
Payments under these leases are recognised as expenses on a straight line 
basis over the lease term.

FINANCE LEASES
Leases which effectively transfer to the Club substantially all the risks and 
benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item are classified as finance 
leases. These are capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the asset or 
the present value of the minimum lease payments. The leased assets and 
corresponding lease liabilities are recognised in the statement of  
financial position.

the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.

Loans and receivables comprise cash and cash equivalents and trade 
receivables, excluding prepayments.

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise 
cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of 
three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash 
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents 
consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above.

Financial liabilities classified as amortised cost are non-derivative financial 
liabilities that are not classified as fair value through surplus or deficit 
financial liabilities.

e)  Impairment of non-derivative financial assets
A financial asset not subsequently measured at fair value through surplus 
or deficit is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is 
objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if there 
is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that 
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event(s) 
had an impact on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be 
estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes default or 
delinquency by a counterparty, restructuring of an amount due to the Club 
on terms that the Club would not consider otherwise, indications that a 
counterparty or issuer will enter bankruptcy, adverse changes in the payment 
status of borrowers or issuers, economic conditions that correlate with 
defaults or the disappearance of an active market for a security.

i)  Financial assets classified as loans and receivables
The Club considers evidence of impairment for financial assets measured  
at amortised cost (loans and receivables) at both a specific asset and 
collective level.

All individually significant assets are assessed for specific impairment. Those 
found not to be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any 
impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified. 

Assets that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for 
impairment by grouping together assets with similar risk characteristics.

In assessing collective impairment the Club uses historical trends of the 
probability of default, the timing of recoveries and the amount of loss 
incurred, adjusted for management’s judgement as to whether current 
economic and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be 
greater or less than suggested by historical trends.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised 
cost is calculated as the difference between its carrying amount and the 
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s 
original effective interest rate. Losses are recognised in surplus or deficit and 
reflected in an allowance account against loans and receivables. Interest on 
the impaired asset continues to be recognised.

When an event occurring after the impairment was recognised causes the 
amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is 
reversed through surplus or deficit.

f)  Property, plant and equipment

The cost of purchased property, plant and equipment is the value of the 
consideration given to acquire the assets and the value of other directly 
attributable costs which have been incurred in bringing the assets to the 
location and condition necessary for their intended service.

i) Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost 
less accumulated depreciation and impairment.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the 
asset.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful 
lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of 
property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment 
(calculated as the difference between the net proceeds from disposal and 
the carrying amount of the item) is recognised in surplus or deficit.

ii) Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is probable that the future 
economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Club. 
Ongoing repairs and maintenance is expensed as incurred.

iii) Depreciation

For property, plant and equipment, depreciation is based on the cost of 
an asset less its residual value and for buildings is based on the revalued 
amount less its residual value.

Significant components of individual assets that have a useful life that 
is different from the remainder of those assets, those components are 
depreciated separately.

Depreciation is recognised in surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis over 
the estimated useful lives of each component of an item of property, plant 
and equipment.

The estimated useful lives are:

%

Buildings 2 - 12.5

Carpark and Services 2.5 - 20

Winstone's Plant and Equipment 6 - 36 

Course Improvements 2 - 20

Course Plant and Equipment 7.2 - 50 

Golf Hub 7 - 33.33

Furniture and Fittings 10 - 33.33

Administration Office Equipment 6 - 40

Residual values are estimated to be Nil.

Depreciation methods, useful lives, and residual values are reviewed at 
reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

g)  Statement of Cash Flows

The following are the definitions of the terms used in the Statement of  
Cash Flows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  continued
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Notes to the Financial

STATEMENTS
5.1 Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

    2020
   Cost Accumm  Depn. Net Book Value

$ $
Buildings
Total Buildings  2,406,246  1,278,734  1,127,512 

House Furniture & Fixtures
Furniture & Fixtures  273,098  227,944  45,154 

Winstone’s - Plant & Equipment
Plant & Equipment  197,766  161,769  35,997 

Administration - Office Equipment
Office Equipment  85,541  62,397  23,144 

Golf Hub
Furniture, Plant & Equipment  438,648  299,443  139,205 

Course
Plant & Equipment  1,440,912  1,204,615  236,297 
Course Improvements  6,977,319  2,847,310  4,130,009 

Total Course  8,418,231  4,051,925  4,366,306 

Other
Carpark & Services  135,648  80,500  55,148 

Total Capitalised Property, Plant and Equipment  11,955,178  6,162,712  5,792,466 

Work In Progress  140,761  -    140,761 

Total Property, Plant and Equipment  12,095,939  6,162,712  5,933,227 

Work in Progress/Contracts for Capital Expenditure   
Work in progress only relates to one project  of development works that is not yet completed.   

 2021  2020
 $  $ 

Property, Plant and Equipment Capitalised
Buildings  2,155,882 -
Winstone’s Plant and Equipment  30,195  4,030 
Course Improvements  -    335,324 
Course Plant & Machinery  216,019  4,051 
Golf Hub and Other  787,529  95,561 
House Furniture & Fittings  -    -   
Administration Office Equipment  1,648  14,600 
Total Property, Plant and Equipment Capitalised  3,191,273  453,566 

Reconciling Items: 
Work in Progress 2021  75,000   -
Work in Progress 2020 (140,761) 140,761
Finance Lease Additions 2021 (446,261) -
Total Property, Plant and Equipment Addition  2,679,251  594,327 

Creditors
Less - 2020 Creditors - Property, Plant and Equipment 42,621 (42,621)
Add - 2021 Creditors - Property, Plant and Equipment (93,512) -
Total Cash Applied to Property, Plant and Equipment and Course Development  2,628,360  551,706 

5.1 Property, Plant and Equipment
Cost Accumulated Depreciation Net Book 

value

 2021 Opening cost Additions (Disposals ) Closing Cost

Opening 
accumulated 
depreciation Depreciation Disposals

Closing 
accumulated 
depreciation

Closing Net 
Book Value

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Buildings
Total Buildings  2,406,246  2,155,882  -    4,562,128  1,278,734  76,559  -    1,355,293  3,206,835 

House Furniture & 
Fixtures
Total House Furniture  
& Fixtures  257,753  -  -  257,753  212,599  12,893  -    225,492  32,261 

Winstone's –  
Plant & Equipment
Total Winstone's –  
Plant & Equipment  197,766  30,195  8,927  219,034  161,769  10,789  6,878  165,680  53,354 

Administration - Office 
Equipment
Total Administration 
Office Equipment  85,541  1,648  10,676  76,513  62,396  11,724  10,676  63,444  13,069 

Golf Hub
Total Golf Hub  438,648  787,529  236,247  989,930  299,443  69,747  236,247  132,943  856,987 

Course
Plant & Equipment  1,440,912  216,019  56,928  1,600,003  1,204,615  128,737  56,928  1,276,424  323,579 
Course Improvements  6,977,320  -  6,977,320  2,847,310  348,493  -    3,195,803  3,781,517 
Total Course  8,418,232  216,019  56,928  8,577,323  4,051,925  477,230  56,928  4,472,227  4,105,096 

Other
Carpark & Services  135,648  -  691  134,957  80,500  3,380  691  83,189  51,768 
Total Other  135,648  -  691  134,957  80,500  3,380  691  83,189  51,768 

Total Capitalised Fixed 
Assets  11,939,834  3,191,273  313,469  14,817,638  6,147,366  662,322  311,420  6,498,268  8,319,370 

Work In Progress - - - - - - - -  75,000 

Total Property, Plant and 
Equipment  8,394,370 

Work In Progress relates to the new driving range development. 

The Club disposed of assets costing $313,469 (loss on disposal of asset - $899) in the current year, (2020: $86,641).

The Property Plant and Equipment are pledged as security over the overdraft facility. Refer note 7.

REMUERA GOLF CLUB  ANNUAL REPORT REMUERA GOLF CLUB  ANNUAL REPORT
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Notes to the Financial

STATEMENTS
  2021  2020

 $  $ 
Total Liability  482,960 112,295
Less Future Finance Charges  45,951 8,316

 437,009 103,979

Less than one year  153,472 69,489
Between one and five year  283,537 34,490
Greater than five years - -

 437,009 103,979

5.8 Members’ Loan Scheme - Unsecured
Interest Rate

Loan Scheme
started 2017 Maturity date Loan amount $5,000 - $75,000  2021  2020 
4 Years 31-May-21 5.00% - 66,000
Loan Scheme
started 2018 Maturity date Loan amount $10,000 - $75,000  2021  2020
4 Years 31-May-22 5.50% 357,500 357,500
Loan Scheme
started 2019 Maturity date Loan amount $10,000 - $75,000  2021  2020
2 Years 31-May-21 4.75% - 165,000
4 Years 31-May-23 5.50% 235,000 235,000
Loan Scheme
started 2020 Maturity date Loan amount $50,000 - $100,000  2021  2020
3 Years 31-Mar-23 4.25% 225,000 225,000
5 Years 31-Mar-25 5.00% 375,000 375,000
Loan Scheme
started 2020 Maturity date Loan amount $40,000 - $75,000  2021  2020
3 Years 15-Sept-23 4.00% 180,000 180,000
5 Years 15-Sept-25 4.50% 220,000 220,000
Loan Scheme Maturity date Loan amount $40,000 - $75,000  2021  2020 
2 Years 31-May-23 4.00%  230,000 -
4 Years 31-May-25 4.50%  120,000 -

Current  357,500  231,000 
Non-Current  1,585,000  1,592,500 

2 and 4 Year Loans - started 2017
Two new loan schemes; 2-year and 4- year options were offered to the members in 2017 year on maturity of the previous 2-year 
loan scheme. The total of the combined loans cannot exceed $300,000. Both loan schemes commenced on 1st of June 2017 and 
the 2-year scheme matures on 31st May 2019 and the 4-year scheme matures on 31st May 2021. Interest of 4.75% for the 2-year 
scheme and 5% for the 4-year scheme are applicable and are payable at the end of each year.

2 and 4 Year Loans - started 2018
Two new loan schemes; 2-year and 4- year options were offered to the members in 2018 year on maturity of the previous 5-year 
loan scheme. The total of the combined loans cannot exceed $400,000. Both loan schemes commenced on 1st of June 2018 and 
the 2-year scheme matures on 31st May 2020 and the 4-year scheme matures on 31st May 2022. Interest of 4.75% for the 2-year 
scheme and 5.50% for the 4-year scheme are applicable and are payable at the end of each year.

2 and 4 Year Loans - started 2019
Two new loan schemes; 2-year and 4- year options were offered to the members this year. The total of the combined loans 
cannot exceed $400,000. Both loan schemes commenced on 1st of June 2018 and the 2-year scheme matures on 31st May 2021 
and the 4-year scheme matures on 31st May 2023. Interest of 4.75% for the 2-year scheme and 5.50% for the 4-year scheme are 
applicable and are payable at the end of each year.

5.2 Sundry Income
 2021  2020

 $  $ 
Rental Income  121,522  123,696 
Sundry  105,034  51,903 

 226,556  175,599 

5.3 Depreciation Summary

  2021  2020
 $  $ 

Facilities  92,832 87,673
Winstone's - Plant & Equipment  10,789 9,156
Administration  11,724 10,431
Golf Hub  69,747 59,106
Course Plant & Equipment  128,737 118,137
Course Improvements  348,493 334,025
Total Depreciation  662,322 618,528

5.4 Notional Disposal of prior Course Improvements
 2021  2020

 $  $ 
Notional disposal of prior course improvements  -  - 

As course redevelopment takes place, each of the 18 greens undergoes some redevelopment.  As a consequence, a portion of past course improvements 
such as drainage, greens and fairways is renewed.  Accordingly, an amount of $23,000 will be recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Revenue 
and Expense against past course improvements as each green is completed. There were no new greens completed in the current year and therefore 
Notional Disposal is nil.

5.5 Inventory
 2021  2020

 $  $ 
Winstone’s  25,660 22,430
Greenkeepers Stock  32,948 39,221
Range Balls  38,138 44,250
Golf Hub  435,137 307,002

 531,883 412,903

In accordance with our suppliers standard terms of trade, some of the inventory held is subject to the usual condition of retention of title by the supplier 
until they are paid.

5.6 Members Match Funds
The balance of net (unspent) Match Income arising from volunteer activities are carried forward at year end.    
A summary of funds as at 30 September is as follows: 

  2021  2020
 $  $ 

Net balance on hand  35,581  32,080 

5.7 Finance Lease Liability
The Club has entered into a rental agreement with UDC Finance to rent 24 golf carts. The rental agreement commenced September 2021 for a period of 
48 months at an interest rate of 5.90 % per annum, with a right to purchase.

The Club has entered into a lease agreement with De Lage Landen Limited to lease a Toro Groundmaster 4300-D mower. The lease agreement 
commenced 20 November 2018 for a period of 48 months.

The Club has entered into a lease agreement with De Lage Landen Limited to lease a Toro Groundmaster 4000-D mower. The lease agreement 
commenced 25 January 2019 for a period of 48 months.

The Club has entered into a lease agreement with De Lage Landen Limited to lease a Toro ProCore 864 Aerator with a right to purchase.. The lease 
agreement commenced April 2021 for a period of 60 months. 

The Club has entered into a rental agreement with John Deere to purchase a tractor. The agreement commenced April 2021 for a period of 36 months at 
an interest rate of 2.40 % per annum.

The Club has entered into a rental agreement with John Deere to purchase a TE Gator. The agreement commenced July 2021 for a period of 36 months at 
an interest rate of 2.40 % per annum.   
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Notes to the Financial

STATEMENTS
Members’ Loan Scheme - continued

3 and 5 Year Loans – started 2020

Two new loan schemes; 3-year and 5- year options were offered to the members this year for the purpose of funding the driving 
range project. The total of the combined loans cannot exceed $700,000. Both loan schemes commenced on 1st of  April 2020 and 
the 3-year scheme matures on 31st March 2023 and the 5-year scheme matures on 31st March 2025. Interest of 4.25% for the 
3-year scheme and 5% for the 5-year scheme are applicable and are payable at the end of each year.

3 and 5 Year Loans – started 2020

Two new loan schemes; 3-year and 5- year options were offered to the members this year for the purpose of funding the driving 
range project. The total of the combined loans cannot exceed $400,000. Both loan schemes commenced on 16th of September 
2020 and the 3-year scheme matures on 15th September 2023 and the 5-year scheme matures on 15th September  2025. 
Interest of 4% for the 3-year scheme and 4.50% for the 5-year scheme are applicable and are payable at the end of each year.

2 and 4 Year Loans – started 2021

Two new loan schemes; 2-year and 4- year options were offered to the members this year. The total of the combined loans 
cannot exceed $350,000. Both loan schemes commenced on 1st of June 2021 and the 2-year scheme matures on 31st May 2023 
and the 4-year scheme matures on 31st May 2025. Interest of 4% for the 2-year scheme and 4.50% for the 4-year scheme are 
applicable and are payable at the end of each year.

5.9 Bank Term Loan
 2021  2020

 $  $ 
ANZ Business Loan 800,000 400,000

In March 2020 the club arranged a loan facility to the value of $800,000 at an interest rate of 5.22% for the purpose of funding 
the driving range project. $400,000 was drawn down in March 2020 and the second $400,000 was drawn down in April 2021. 
The total loan facility expires in March 2022 and the club is currently negotiating its renewal with the bank.

5.10 Advance Subscriptions
Subscription notices for the 2021/2022 year dated 1 October 2021 were mailed prior to year end and any monies received 
prior to balance date are treated as subscriptions and corporate income in advance. This income received in advance will 
be recognised as revenue in the 2021/2022 year in accordance with the accounting policy in note 4a. Any refund of annual 
subscriptions will only be made at the discretion of the Committee only in special circumstances.

6  EXPENDITURE
6.1 Staff Costs Summary

2021 2020
$ $

Golf Hub  891,103 540,334
Course  782,857 728,337
Clubhouse  36,770 7,543
Winstone's  727,698 601,973
Administration & Management  575,182 432,227
Total Staff Costs  3,013,610 2,310,414

6.2 Golf Hub
2021 2020

$ $
Staff Costs  891,103 540,334
Golf Cart Expenses  7,978 12,779
Range Balls & Equipment  141,027 135,504
Golf Academy & Coaching  156,053 171,630
Cost of Sales  917,165 750,477
Sundry  66,920  37,002 
Total  2,180,246 1,647,726

6.3 Course
2021 2020

$ $
Staff Costs  782,857 728,337
Course Maintenance  351,747 412,282
Plant Repairs & Maintenance  84,650 80,841
Fuel & Oil  26,111 24,283
Course Administration  16,690 7,493
Total Course  1,262,055 1,253,236

6.4 Facilities
2021 2020

$ $
Staff Costs - Clubhouse  36,770 7,543
Cleaning  55,197 44,517
Energy  49,017 38,845
Water Supply  17,061 14,092
Laundry & Supplies  19,417 17,246
Security Fees  22,520 19,279
General  22,649 22,529
Rent  130,000 130,000
Rates & Insurance  79,786 71,261
Building Repairs & Maintenance  236,616 96,912

 669,033 462,224

6.5 Winstone’s - Overhead
2021 2020

$ $
Staff Costs  727,698 601,973
Laundry & Cleaning  15,651 18,292
Repairs & Maintenance  19,125 11,013
General  41,729 22,778
Total Winstone’s - Overhead  804,203 654,056

6.6 Administration
2021 2020

$ $
Staff Costs and Management Services  575,182 432,227
Printing and Stationery  39,245 40,408
Computer and Telecommunication  118,345 87,688
Accounting Services  19,284 19,531
Audit Fees - RSM Hayes Audit  9,135 9,266
Professional Fees  42,935 61,812
General  47,338 46,578
Total Administration  851,464 697,510

6.7 Finance
2021 2020

$ $
Interest to Members  90,292 59,940
Bank Interest  39,793 9,807
Lease Interest  7,853 11,051
Sundry Bank Fees  6,725 3,685
Credit Card Fees  43,570 29,784
Interest Received (653) (230)
Total Net Finance Costs  187,580 114,037
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2020

Financial  
Assets

Financial 
Liabilities

Loans and 
receivables

Amortised cost

$ $
Cash and cash equivalents  2,089,156 -
Receivables from exchange transactions  9,868 -
Payables (excluding accruals)  -    515,618 
Finance lease payable  -    103,979 
Loans and borrowings  -    2,223,500 

 2,099,024  2,843,097 

11. TRADE PAYABLES

Exchange transactions 2021 2020
$ $

Accounts payable  150,686 396,606
Interest accrual  35,524 29,444
Other accruals  453,428 298,894

 639,638 724,944

Non-exhanged transactions 2021 2020
$ $

Wage - subsidy  -   141,918
GST Payable  1,474 -
Grant - Sports NZ  -   21,429

 1,474 163,347

12. COMMITMENTS
(a)  Capital Commitments
There were no capital commitments as at the reporting date. 
At 30 September 2020, the following commitments were entered into:
•  A tender was accepted to construct the new driving range in June 2020.
• The structural engineering design proposal for the driving range was accepted in July 2020.
• A fee proposal for engineer to the contract and commercial management was accepted in August 2020.    

(b)  Operating Commitments
As at 30 September 2021 the Club has entered into the various contracts: 

2021 2020
No later than One Year  230,904 138,362
Later than One Year and No Later than Five Years  872,351 521,584
Later than Five Years  1,040,000 1,170,000

 2,143,255 1,829,946

The property lease with the Auckland City Council has 70 years to run. The annual rental from the 22 October 2013 is $130,000 (GST exclusive) with 
rent reviews every 21 years. The next rent review date is 21 October 2034. The Club entered into a rental agreement with Topgolf Limited to rent the 
Toptracer system for 60 months. This commitment ends on 20 April 2026.

13. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
There are no contingent assets or liabilities at the reporting date. (2020: Nil).

14. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
The Club has no subsequent events to report at balance date (2020: Nil).       

15. COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Some comparative figures were changed to conform with this years disclosures.

16. COVID-19 IMPACT
The COVID-19 outbreak was declared a “Public Health Emergency of International Concern” by the World Health Organisation in January 2020. Since then, 
the outbreak has spread globally and was confirmed in New Zealand in February 2020, causing disruption to businesses, travel and economic activity. 

During the financial year the club was under increased alert levels (level 2 or greater) for a total of 64 days.

The Club has implemented a number of processes and procedures in response to the outbreak in line with recommendation from the New Zealand 
government. The Club continues to monitor the impact of COVID-19 both locally and globally. The board have considered all information available at the date 
of signing the financial statements and have included an un-audited budget for the 2022 year in the annual report. The board do not foresee any liquidity 
issues in funding the Club’s future operations.

Notes to the Financial

STATEMENTS
7.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2021 2020
$ $

Cash and cash equivalents include the following components:
Cash on hand  1,800 1,800
Cash in bank  347,468 255,329
Bank call account  25 1,830,566
Bank - GBP & USD  1,731 1,461

 351,024 2,089,156

Subject to the following, there were no restrictions over any of the cash and cash equivalents held by the Club.

The Club has an overdraft facility of $500,000 (2020: $150,000) with Australia and New Zealand Banking Group. The applicable interest rate for this 
facility is 9.35%. This facility is secured by a general security agreement over all assets and a first registered mortgage over the buildings, refer to 
note 5.1. The facility is undrawn on at year end.   

8.  RECEIVABLES

2021 2020
$ $

Receivables from exchange transactions
Trade Receivables  32,208 15,870
Impairment Allowance  -   (6,002)
Other  10,700 -

 42,908 9,868

At 30 September, the ageing analysis of receivables from exchange transactions is as follows:

Total Due < 30 days 30-60 days 61-90 days >90 days
$ $ $ $ $

2021  32,208  4,500  3,201  3,546  20,961 
2020 15,870 7,188 680 - 8,002

2021 2020
$ $

Non-exchange transactions
GST Receivable - 10,359

9.  RELATED PARTY
Related party transactions and balances
The club entered into transaction with the following Board members during the year: Robert Briscoe - Course Maintenance,  
Andrew Millard - Project Management. The transactions are not material, and no balances are outstanding at year end. 

Key management personnel compensation
Key management personnel compensation 2021 2020

$ $
Key management personnel compensation  1,061,639 852,712
Senior staff (FTE) 11.5 9

10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The table below shows the carrying amounts of the Club’s financial assets and financial liabilities.

i. Classification of financial instruments
 
2021

Financial  
Assets

Financial 
Liabilities

Loans and 
receivables

Amortised cost

$ $
Cash and cash equivalents  351,024 -
Receivables from exchange transactions  42,908 -
Payables (excluding accruals)  -    330,018 
Finance lease payable  -    437,009 
Loans and borrowings  -    2,742,500 

 393,932  3,509,527 

REMUERA GOLF CLUB  ANNUAL REPORT REMUERA GOLF CLUB  ANNUAL REPORT



3938 These financial statements are to be read in conjunction with the attached notes and the Auditor’s Report

WITH THANKS
The wide range of events and activities in our club would not happen without the time and expertise freely given by so many of our members.  
In addition to committee members the board wishes to acknowledge the many contributions made which greatly enhance the benefits enjoyed by all 
members of the Remuera Golf Club. 

• Referees Esther Cowper, Chris Carroll, Helen Peters

• AGA Delegates James Kim, Wendy Williams  

• Men’s Pennants James Eng, Manu Taylor, Michael Maingay, Andrew Millard, Igor Ivanov, Paul Hurtley

• Women’s Interclub Pauline Harrision, Pam Donnelly, Joan Reeves, Di Hawkins, Lyn Kempthorne, Esther Cowper, Jo Hollies

• Junior Co-Ordinator  Josh Butler and John Sims

• Junior Sponsor Rod MacNeil (Barfoot & Thompson)

• Dads’ Army/Volunteers Graham Arnold, Cliff Cable, Russell Campbell, Kevin Grogan, Jim Holmes, Kevin Long, Brett Morpeth, Barry Wilkie, Graham MacKinlay, John  
 Childerhouse, Selwyn Wong, Bruce Carnachan, Rolo Gillespie, Bryan Davies, Jim Greenwood, John Reeves, Mark Evans, Pierce Brown, Sandy Grigg,  
 Graeme Riley, George Huang, John Hooper

Thank you to all of our volunteer board and committee members.

• Board Members  Ian Braddock (Chairman and Club Captain), Ken Taylor (Club President), James Kim (Men’s Golf Captain), Wendy Williams (Women’s Golf Captain),   
 Pauline Harrison, Grant Marshall, Andrew Millard 

There are other contributing members not named on this page; please also accept our sincere thanks.

Budget for the 2021/2022 

FINANCIAL YEAR
(Unaudited) 
2022 Budget

2021 Actual (Unaudited) 
2021 Budget 

$  $  $ 
INCOME
Membership Revenue  2,601,000  2,608,811  2,439,000 
Partnership | Sponsorship  305,000  282,824  240,000 
Club Services  4,447,500  3,642,405  3,936,000 
Other Income  370,000  705,880  332,100 
Total Income  7,723,500  7,239,920  6,947,100 

EXPENDITURE
Course & Env  1,307,000  1,262,055  1,250,350 
Club Services  3,757,500  3,574,716  3,358,750 
Facilities  669,000  669,033  634,000 
Administration  834,000  851,464  737,000 
Finance  198,000  187,580  207,000 
Total Expenditure  6,765,500  6,544,848  6,187,100 

Net Operating Surplus before Depreciation  958,000  695,072  760,000 
Depreciation  830,000  662,322  640,000 
Net Operating Surplus / (Deficit)  128,000  32,750  120,000 

COVID- 19
Further budget scenarios were prepared based on potential impact of Covid on income and expenses.

This Budget for the 2021/2022 Financial year does not form part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 September 2021. 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE BUDGET:

 (Unaudited) 
2022 Budget 

 (Unaudited) 
2023 Budget

 $ 
Funds Available from Operations:
Net Operating Surplus:  128,000 
Add:  Depreciation for year  830,000 

 958,000 
The Club intends to use these funds for:

Capital Expenditure Budget:
Course Improvements  272,000  410,000 
Course Plant and Machinery  119,000  135,000 
Buildings and Clubhouse  425,000  325,000 
Other  135,000  190,000 
Total  951,000  1,060,000 

This Budget for the 2021/2022 Financial year does not form part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 September 2021.

REMUERA GOLF CLUB  ANNUAL REPORT REMUERA GOLF CLUB  ANNUAL REPORT

KEY PARTNERSHIPS
We acknowledge and thank the following key partnerships  
and community groups for their continued support.

Golf New Zealand
Auckland Golf
Orakei Local Board
Winger Motors
Panasonic
Fine Wine Deliver Co.
Asahi Beverages
Bluestar
Blues Rugby

KEY COMMUNITY GROUPS
St Andrew’s Village
Edmund Hillary Retirement Village
Men’s Shed Auckland East
Remuera Golf Bridge Club
St Johns | Remuera Friendship Club
St Johns | Remuera | Newmarket Rotary Clubs
Rotary District 9920
Business Network International (BNI)
Rebus Mt Hobson
U3A
Auckland North Harbour Referees Association
Remuera Garden Club

CLUB COMMITTEES
Finance & Audit Committee Maurice Kidd (Chair), Ian Braddock, Mike Gault, Jan Martin, Vicki Salmon, Brett Winstanley, Chris Davies

Course Technical Group Andrew Millard (Chair), Ian Braddock, Michael Bartlett, Greg Kenward, Grant Marshall, Grant Puddicombe,  
Chris Davies, Spencer Cooper

Membership Committee Pauline Harrison (Chair), Geoff Burns, Jo Hollies, Grant Marshall, Karee Oates, Chris Davies

Golf & Match Committee James Kim (Chair), Wendy Williams, Peter McCormack, Esther Cowper, Barry Hall, Cullam Murchison,   
Stephanie Grant, John Sims, Richard Jones, Callum Cameron

Women’s Committee Wendy Williams (Chair), Villia Cheng, Nicola Judd, Jo Cahill, Megan King, Tessa Larsen, Paula Hollies,  
Stephanie Grant, John Sims, Richard Jones

Club Services Group Geoff Burns (Chair), Grant Marshall, David Burton, Megan King, Tony Dangerfield, Chris Davies
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REMUERA GOLF CLUB PRIZE WINNERS 2021
MENS GOLF  PRIZE WINNERS

MEN’S GOLF – RGC COMPETITIONS  

Match Play Open Matthew Cormack 
Match Play Intermediate Kailesh Patel 
Match Play Junior Erik Jorgensen 
Match Play C Grade John Hill 
Match Play D Grade Mike Hyams 
Stroke Play Open Not played 
Stroke Play Intermediate Not played 
Stroke Play Junior Not played 
Stroke Play C Grade Not played 
Stroke Play D Grade Not played 
Captains Prize Brett Innes 
General Managers Prize Not played 
Veterans Cup Keith Aitchison 
Fraternity Bowl Not played 
Jack Notman Trophy Not played 
Waiatarua Trophy Geoff Hamilton & Warren Bygrave 
Mid-Week Captains Bruce Renshaw 
Mid-Week Presidents Not played 
Summer Cup Tada Wada 
Winter Cup Andrew Williams 
Remuera Plate Not played 
Anzac Trophy Chris Hanley, Thomas Neylon, David Annan & Blair James 
Presidents Foursomes Stephen Bryers & Warren Bygrave 
Booth Cup  TBA 
Davie McGuire Trophy Not played 
Scottish Cup Andy Horsfall  

WOMENS GOLF 18 HOLE PRIZE WINNERS
CLUB CHAMPIONSHIPS – JUBILEE STROKE PLAY  - Not played

CLUB MATCH PLAY CHAMPIONSHIPS   - Not played

TROPHY COMPETITIONS AND OTHER COMPETITIONS

WINNERS RUNNERS UP TOP QUALIFIERS
Foursomes Championship Helen Peters & Janice McKinley Linley Downer & Anne Lash
Foursomes Flight Not played
Top Cat Weekday Villia Cheng & Tina Chai Heather Gordon & Susan Harvey Nicola Judd & Brenda Lockey
Top Cat Weekend Mihwa Lee & Sunny Park Kath Howe & Kris Taylor Maureek Kirkland-Smith  

& Lyn Kempthorne
Nancy MacCormick Mihwa Lee & Sunny Park Kath Howe & Kris Taylor Mitsuko Wada & Wendy Williams

WOMENS GOLF 18 HOLE PRIZE WINNERS continued
WINNER RUNNER UP

Weekend Foursomes Cup Maureen Kirkland-Smith & Ann Bone Nicky Durkin & Maree Richie Caroline Timms & Toni Sinclair
Weekend Putting Cup (Shared) Lorna Reid & Lyn Kempthorne
Masters Trophy Kath Howe Karen Tapper
Business Women’s Pennant Trophy Hannah Murchison

WINNER SECOND THIRD
Winter Cup Helen Peters Wendy Williams Judy Purchase
Winter Stableford Weekend Megan King Giselle Pascual Lyn Kempthorne
Weekend Eclectic - Gross Megan King
Weekend Eclectic - Net Justine Murchison
Weekday Eclectic - Gross Helen Peters
Weekday Eclectic - Net Mihwa Lee
Presidents Trophy Not played
Autumn Handicap Div 1 Vivian Zhu & Mihwa Lee Helen Peters & Villa Cheng
Autumn Handicap Div 2 Marlene Mak & Brenda Lockey Cilla Tsui & Margaret Ward-Holmes
Gross Medal Cup Helen Peters
Middlemore Cup Mihwa Lee
Putting Prize Jane Lewis Mihwa Lee Judy Purchase

WINNERS OF LGU ROUNDS

SILVER BRONZE 1 BRONZE 2 BRONZE 3
Winners Helen Peters Mihwa Lee Judy Purchase Jill Bartlett

WOMENS GOLF 9 HOLE PRIZE WINNERS
TROPHY COMPETITIONS AND OTHER COMPETITIONS (awarded at end of year Prize Giving)

FIRST SECOND THIRD NET
Sue Bunt - Open Jackie Antonievich Helen Bowie Gail Plowright n/a
Putting – Best 2 of 3 - Open Jackie Antonievich n/a
Winter Stableford Bev Aynsley Anna Masefield Sarah Hills n/a
Club Champs - Division 1 & 2 Yet to be played
Top Cat Yet to be played
  WINNER RUNNER-UP
Matchplay Champs - Division 1 & 2 Yet to be played
Foursomes - Division 1 Sarah Fyfe & Robyn Larsen Pushpa Hallikeri & Christine Duffy
Foursomes - Division 2 Cathy Hutchinson & Wendy Kusabs Bev Aynsley & Lynette Turner
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RGC   09 524 4288  
Golf Hub   09 524 1406

PO Box 87-180 Meadowbank 1742 
120 Abbotts Way, Remuera Auckland 1050

office@remueragolfclub.com 

www.remueragolfclub.com | www.velocityrange.com

RemueraGolfClub
Coaching@remueragolfclub
WinstonesRGC
TheGolfShop

OFFICE | ADMINISTRATION
Mon – Fri   8.30am – 5.00pm
General Manager     Chris Davies | gm@remueragolfclub.com 
Accounts  Stacy Liao | accounts@remueragolfclub.com 
Enquiries  enquiries@remueragolfclub.com 

MEMBERSHIP & MARKETING
Director of Membership & Marketing    Karee Oates
Membership  Adam Solecki | membership@remueragolfclub.com 
Events  James Mamea  | events@remueragolfclub.com

CLUB SERVICES
Director of Club Services Tony Dangerfield 
Retail Services Conal Cooke | golfshop@remueragolfclub.com
Off Course Golf
Coaching  coaching@remueragolfclub.com
Velocity Range velocityrange@remueragolfclub.com
On Course Golf Stephanie Grant | golfadmin@remueragolfclub.com
Winstone’s  Grant Nicholas | winstones@remueragolfclub.com

 COURSE
Superintendent    Spencer Cooper | course@remueragolfclub.com 
Assistant Superintendent    Callum Cameron 

CONTACT INFORMATION

GREAT GOLF.
LIFELONG FRIENDS.

2021



Club Management  Phone 09 524 4288
Email  enquiries@remueragolfclub.com
Address  120 Abbotts Way, Remuera, Auckland

www.remueragolfclub.com


